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Our mission is to promote, safeguard and represent
the interests of the Hong Kong business community.
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REPORT OF THE GENERAL COMMITTEE

(For the year ended 31 December, 2013)

The General Committee has pleasure in presenting its report
together with the financial statements for the year ended 31
December, 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The role of the Chamber is to promote, represent and safeguard
the interests of the Hong Kong business community.

ACCOUNTS
The state of the Chamber's affairs at 31% December, 2013 and the

result for the year ended are set out in the financial statements on
pages 74-94.

ASSETS

Details of the movements in assets are shown in notes 4-10 to the
financial statements.

GENERAL COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The General Committee Members who held office during the
year are set out on pages 6 and 7. No Member of the General
Committee, or any other Members of the Chamber, received any
form of remuneration in return for their services, other than normal
professional or similar fees paid for services or supplies rendered
to the Chamber and no portion of the income or property of the
Chamber was paid or transferred directly or indirectly by way of
dividend, bonus or otherwise to Members of the Chamber.

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Chamber was a party and in
which a General Committee Member had a material interest subsisted
at the end of the year nor at any time during the year.

AUDITORS

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Chamber is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

By Order of the General Committee,

UK

C K Chow
Chairman
on 27 March, 2014
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SNaPSot
of 2013

JANUARY 1 A

FEBRUARY 2 A

Mission to Macao RPIERE

China Cocktail Reception TEZEERE

Chinese New Year Dinner mERE

New LegCo Complex tour DEgRa NEEEE
Visit to Park Island recycling facilities BRI E BYGRIE

Yau Ma Tei Historical Trail REHME £

Visit to Nano Advanced Materials Institute 228 4K K2 S35 KL 35 B

MARCH 3H

Luncheon with the Financial Secretary MBRRRTEY
The New LegCo: Jasper Tsang SDEEHE N - BERK
Town Hall Forum: Secretary for Justice Rimsky Yuen #E#®18 : KA AIR= 8
Mission to Qianhai AEERE
Visit to Kowloon East ERNER
Visit to SGS Laboratories ZESCSMAERE
Visit to Kowloon Bay Recycling Centre ZRNFEELDUH O

| T,

Mission to Guangdong ERERE
Luncheon with the Chief Executive 1THREETEE
Mission to Henggin BEERE
Site visit to ExxonMobil 2ERTREF ME
Visit to Ricoh Recycling facilities ERB KB R
Outbound Missions Site Visits
The Chamber organized high-level business The Chamber organized a wide range of site visits in 2013. Following are a few of the highlights:

missions to Guangzhou in January and Beijing
in November, as well as fact-finding missions to
various Mainland cities in 2013. Further afield,
we also visited Kazakhstan and Russia.

B ExxonMobil Hong Kong West Terminal
B Organic and Computer Waste Recycling
B SGS Quality Assurance Testing Laboratories
B Baptist University Schools of Business, Film & Chinese Medicine
B Eu Yan Sang

B Digital Magic Limited Studios
B Vogue Laundry

B Government Dockyard

B Ta Kwu Ling Landfill

B Hong Kong Design Institute and IVE

B VTC Hospitality Industry Training & Development Centre and Chinese Cuisine Training Institute

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce Annual Report 2013



APRIL 4 H

$1 million donation to support Sichuan earthquake relief efforts
Raising the Service Bar Seminar

Town Hall Forum: Bernard Chan

Dialogue with CPPCC National Committee Members
Distinguished Speakers Series: John Greenwood

Mission to Fujian

Cocktail Reception with Consuls General of Asia & Africa
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CEPA 10th Anniversary

Certification of Documents Service launched
Town Hall Forum: Regina Ip s
Monaco Chamber of Economic Development Visit
Mission to Nansha
Mission to Henan i
Good Citizen Award i
Meet the Chairman Cocktail Reception . I“'“ “II’J'”
Cocktail Reception with Consuls General of Europe S e
Visit to Digital Magic Studios =
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Free Ride Day
HK-Guangdong Business Promotion Seminar

i " Wang Chao, Vice Minister of Commerce, PRC visits Chamber

Mission to Kazakhstan & Russia

HKGCC Annual General Meeting
Visit to Baptist University
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Major Conferences

19th Annual Hong Kong Business Summit

CEO Manpower Conference

Constitutional Development in Hong Kong

Hong Kong-Guangdong Business Environment Promotion Conference

Town Hall Forum Series

Financial Secretary, John Tsang Chun-wah

Secretary for Justice, Rimsky Yuen

Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury, K C Chan

Secretary for Transport and Housing, Professor Anthony Cheung
Commissioner of Police, Andy Tsang Wai-hung

The Commissioner of Customs and Excise, Clement Cheung

President of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong, Jasper Tsang Yok-sing
Regina Ip Lau Suk Yee, Non-official Member, Executive Council

Policy Submissions

The Chamber submitted policy proposals and recommendations on a wide
range of consultations in 2013, including very complex and far-reaching laws,
such as class action, trust law, and unfair trade practices. Following are 10 key
consultations:

Air Pollution Control (Amendment) Bill

Class Actions in Hong Kong

Developing Hong Kong's Port, Maritime and Logistics Capabilities

Digital 21 Strategy

Enhancing Land Supply Strategy: Stage 2 Public Engagement Exercise
Long Term Housing Strategy

Policy Address cum Budget Submission

Scheme of Control Agreements in 2013

Trust Law (Amendment) Bill 2013

Trade Descriptions (Unfair Trade Practices) (Amendment) Ordinance 2012

Cocktail Reception with Consuls General of the Americas




AUGUST 8 A

Maserati test drive

THEERREZRE
BEREESRKREIGF
EXBYRBREEE

Jiangsu Province welcome reception
Kagoshima Trade Delegation
Imperial Museum Exclusive Visit

JULY 7R

Town Hall Forum: Financial Secretary

Town Hall Forum: Commissioner of Police
CEPA Seminar

Visit to CityU

Visit to HKSAR Government Dockyard
Mission to Guangxi

Distinguished Speaker Series: Jean-Pascal
Tricoire, Chairman & CEQ, Schneider Electric
Mission to Fujian

Unfair Trade Practices Seminar

DrY S Cheung, Senior Director, HKGCC, retired
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CY Leung visits Chamber RIREP S
17th Beijing-Hong Kong Economic Cooperation Symposium
Visit to Vogue Laundry DEIORHRRITS

BIUEREAESR

Sake appreciation workshop BEAEE
Visit to Dragon King Restaurant's Kitchen ERESBREE

SEPTEMBER 9 A
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Good Citizen Award 40th Anniversary
Forum on Constitutional Development

DECEMBER 12 A

OCTOBER 10 A

CEO Manpower Conference
Long-Term Housing Strategy Seminar
Policy Forums

Talent-Wise Employment Charter
Cocktail Reception with

Consuls General of the Americas
Breakfast meeting with Starry Lee
Mission to Zhejiang
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NOVEMBER 11 H

Mission to Sichuan

Town Hall Forum: K C Chan,
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High-level Business Delegation to Beijing

Luncheon with the Chief Executive on Land and Housing Shortages
Annual Hong Kong Business Summit

Wang Qinmin, Vice Chairman, CPPCC, visits Chamber

InterCham Treasure Hunt

Cocktail Reception with Consuls General of Europe

Visit to Mariner of the Seas

Visit to Hong Kong Design Institute

Chamber BBQ Night

Joint Chambers’ Sports Tournament

Secretary for Financial Services & the Treasury =
HKGCC Christmas Cocktail Reception
Cross-Strait Cooperation Seminar
Breakfast Meeting with Connie Lau
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Country Briefing with U.S. Consul General Clifford Hart
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General Committee - 2= &

£

Mr C K Chow Mr Y K Pang, sBS, JP Mr Victor Li Mr Stephen TH Ng
Chairman Deputy Chairman Vice Chairman Vice Chairman
B L ERESRL FTEBEE RRBEE

Ea BHEILE BIEE BIE%

Mr Nicholas Brooke, sBS, Jp Dr Christopher Cheng, GBs, JP Mr Oscar Chow Mr Manohar Chugh, MH Dr Fu Yu Ning
SERRELSEE EHESE T BHEESY XS BE=ERT

Mr Stanley Hui, Jp Dr Raymond Kwok, Jp Mr Ronald Lee Mr David T C Lie, sBS, OM, JP
FRERSGL SRR TEIBSEL FTRALTE

Mr Anthony Wu, GBs, JP Mr K K Yeung, JP Mr Yu Pang Chun, sBs, JP Mr Andrew Yuen
tRARENBSEE BEBSLE REFLLE RIEETE
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Chamber Council s5:&S
Mr C K Chow (Chairman) BAELE (£ &)
Mr Y K Pang, sss,ip (Deputy Chairman) UIRELRE (EHEELE)
Mr Victor Li (Vice Chairman) ZE8RSEE (BIEE)
Mr Stephen T H Ng (Vice Chairman) RXBEE (BIERE)
Mr Christopher Pratt, cee (Vice Chairman) B4 E L% (BIE£/F)
The Hon Jeffrey K F Lam, css, )p (Legco Representative) — i & (L E &R E)
Mr Andrew Brandler BIUBEE
Mr Nicholas Brooke, sss, ip AL
Dr Christopher Cheng, s, 1p BHEEEL
Mr Christopher Pratt, Cee  The Hon Jefirey K F Lam, Ges, Jp Mr Paul M F Cheng, i» KRAAR S £
Vlcaeﬁ(a?o;ggon Legcogé%e%eémohve Mr Oscar Chow EH’EIE?EE
e TTESAE Mr Manohar Chugh, Xk E
Mr David Eldon, css, ip XEHEE
Dr Fu Yu Ning BEEEEL
é’ Dr William Fung, ses, 1p HEGEL
IE g =] Dr Aron H Harilela EHERE L
Mr He Guangbei, » L%
Mr Stanley Hui, »» HFEREE
Mr Daniel Koo HRSEEEE
Dr Raymond Kwok, SRIRELE
Mr Allen Lee, FWEREE
Mr Ronald Lee FHIELRE
Mr David T C Lie, sss, om, 1p FRMEE
Mr J B M Litmaath = Bi4
Dr Vincent H S Lo, css, ip ZRmEL
Dr Aron H Harilela Mr He Guangbei, Jp Mr Anthony Nightingale, sss ST
ST RIS Dr H Sohmen. [ 354
Dr Jack C Tang EETEL
The Hon James Tien, cas, p HiLE#%E
Mr C C Tung, sgs, Jp BEEMLE
Mr Peter Wong, i EZBEE
Mr Anthony Wu, as, Jp HEEEE
Mr K K Yeung, » BRI %
Mr Yu Pang Chun, ses, ip RBELE
Mr Andrew Yuen REEXE
Mrs Betty Yuen Fu#kLiE &+
The Hon James Tien, GBs, JP Mr Peter Wong, JP Dr Allan Zeman, cem, Gss, Jp B AT+

BiR=ES ERBRE

Chairman's Committee TEEE S

Mr C K Chow (Chairman) [ 00000 @oo)
Mr Y K Pang, sss, p (Deputy Chairman) 00000 @ooon)
Mr Victor Li (Vice Chairman) ooooo @oo)
Mr Stephen T H Ng (Vice Chairman) ooooo@oo)
Mr Christopher Pratt, cge (Vice Chairman) ooooo@WwoO)
Mrs Betty Yuen Dr Allan Zeman, GBM, GBS, JP The Hon Jeffrey K F Lam, G8s, I (Legco Representative) oooo0o@Woooo)
Fegr gL BEVHL Miss Shirley Yuen (CEO) ooooo @oo)

(As of December 2013 R2013%125)
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Committee Chairmen - Z 2 £ &

Americas Committee Asia/Africa Committee China Committee

EMNEEST SENIENEEE PEESE

Chairman EJE: Chairman EJE: Chairman EE:

@ Mr Michael ) Paulus FEIEE %4 © Vi Marc Castagnet 32 %4 © Vr Edmond Yue REAE %4

Vice Chairmen I EE: Vice Chairmen &I EE: Vice Chairmen &I EE:

Mr Gary Ahuja AnFI %4 Mr Behzad Mirzaei B2 5t 4% Mr David Hsu 373 B 554

Mr Thomas Wa Sun Wong & 42 554 Mr N S Shroff e #ERIFE 8= e Ms Petrina Tam EEHB Z L
Mr Andrew Wells ZE= B4 4% Dr Eden Woon UL E B+

Mr Yu Pang Chun RIB& St %

COMMITTEE CHAIRMEN

Digital, Information and Economic Policy Committee Environment and Sustainability
Telecommunications Committee HBBRESE Committee
(B BEESS &
ﬁﬁ% éuﬂ&%uﬂ;ﬁa Chairman __1:—/%— &T?"*f gfe ; [=h=
Chairman ZfE: e Dr Mark Michelson ZE& i<t Chairman £ /E:
© Vs Agnes Tan BRELSE 22+ Vice Chairmen B3/ © Wi Cary Chan BB £
Vice Chairmen BIZEJE: Mr Peter Churchouse | B 54 Vice Chairmen BIZEFE:
Dr Eric Chin g8+ Mr Tony Miller B 2238584 Dr Jeanne Ng RItE B+
Mr Robert Fong 75 5T 564 Dr Thomas S K Tang BRs5 e+
Mr Steve Wong EJKIB5EE
Europe Committee Financial and Treasury Services Industry & Technology Committee
ENEESE Committee TERFHESE
Chairman ZfE: EMRMARBEEEE Chairman ZfE:
0 Mr N S Shroff R 4 RIFE4E = 4 Chairman Ef%: e MrK C Leung RER L4
Vice Chairmen BIEE: e Mr Weber Lo EEE 4R 5t 4£ Vice Chairmen &I EE:
Mr Eberhard Brodhage B 8|35 % Vice Chairman &IE/E: Mr Nature Yang #5 B R %4
Ms Jennifer Chan BRIRE Z = Ms Agnes Chan BRE&IE Z = Mr Emil Yu FRZR &£

Mr Sergio Men ERHR - ZEE
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Legal Committee

EREEE

Chairman E/E:
@ Vrwiliam Brown ffifE 5= (11]
Vice Chairmen BIZEfE:
Mr Peter Caldwell &M %&£
Mr Stephen Crosswell =2 50554
Mr Kenneth Ng {ERLZE L4

Real Estate & Infrastructure Committee

HMEREEESE

Chairman EJE:
@ Mr Peter Churchouse S BS54 (14)
Vice Chairmen &I E/E:
Mr Simon Davies EifE B %4
Mr Ricky Wong Z B %4

Shipping & Transport Committee
WEREBESE

Chairman EJE:
@ MrJohn Harries E #8754 ®
Vice Chairmen &I EE:
Dr Kelvin Leung Rt iE
Mr Tony Miller B 223855 4%

Taxation Committee

BBEEE

Chairman EJE:
@ Mr David Hunter B4 £ 4 @
Vice Chairmen &% /E:
Mr Francis Lee Z2Z R E4E
Ms Grace Tang BRE S+

Manpower Committee

ANZEEE

Chairman ZJE:

Mr Matthias Li Z4E5R 564
Vice Chairmen BIZE:

Ms Nancy Chan BR#faF & £

Mr Nicholas R Sallnow-Smith %&Jk 88 ¢ £

Mr Albert Wong 52554

Retail & Tourism Committee
TERKRBEST

Chairman ZJE:

Mr Yu Pang Chun RIBE L%
Vice Chairmen BIZE:

Ms Sylvia Chung S22 8z +

Mr Frank K T Lee WK &4

Small & Medium Enterprises Committee

PNBREEESE

Chairman ZJE:

Dr Cliff CK Chan BR{EE &+
Vice Chairmen BIZE:

Mr William L S Wong ZE#E8 S 4
Mr Norman Yeung B8 £ 4

HONG KONG COALITION OF
SERVICE INDUSTRIES
HERZEDR

Chairman ZJE:
Mr Leland Sun &3 B) e 4

Membership Committee
EERGRESE

Chairman EfE:
@ MrYKPang iBfESEE

SPECIAL INTEREST GROUPS
HE/ME

Taiwan Interest Group
a2E/E

Chairman E/E:
@ MrStanley Hui FFHEBEE

Women Executives Club

it

Chairman E/E:
€ Mrs Margaret Leung REHFR L+
Vice Chairmen &I E/E:
Ms Jennifer Chan BRIME &+
Mrs Cindy Cheng #B3835 55 22
Ms Suzie Setsuko Wakai # F &1 F 2+

(As of December 2013 1R2013%125)
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By global standards, Hong Kong's economy registered
reasonable growth of 2.9% in real terms in 2013, just about
double the pace of 2012, supported by a broad array of sectors.
Trade, always the dominant driver, expanded at twice the pace
of the previous year, while consumption steadily nudged ahead.
Capital investment, likely constrained by insufficient skilled
labour, slowed by half. Amid a shaky global recovery, this is

perhaps the best for which we might have wished.

There are two key constraints on our economy: one foreign and
the other domestic. There is little we can do to generate faster
demand in overseas markets, although there are important steps
that might be taken to make our business and financial centre
the first choice for companies working in the Asian half of the
world. Among these are investing in lowering the cost of doing
business, raising productivity and ensuring that our regulatory
environment is not only second to none, but also appropriate for

our economy.

On the domestic side, we continue to struggle with extremely
high numbers of job vacancies, some 72,380 as of December
2013. That is an increase of 11% in just one year, and the highest
level in decades. While we continue to create new employment
opportunities, and have held the unemployment rate to below
3.5% for the third year in a row, this tight labour market is
undermining our competitiveness and raising the cost of doing
business. As such, inflation has been uncomfortably high over the

past three years, averaging more than 4.5% per annum.

Our retail sector continues to provide important, counter-cyclical
support to the broadest sector of society. Healthy double-digit
growth in tourism for the fourth consecutive year helped push
retail sales up 11% over the previous year. That was off-set by
the cool global economy: foreign trade expanded only modestly

for the second year in a row, rising 3.8% over 2012.
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Your Chamber continues to provide the very best in business-
relevant activities and events. In 2013 we celebrated the 40th
anniversary of the Chamber-sponsored Good Citizen Award, held
our biennual CEO Manpower Conference and raised the bar

with our 19th Annual Hong Kong Business Summit.

During the course of the year, members met with top Hong Kong
leaders including Chief Executive CY Leung, Financial Secretary
John Tsang, HKMA Chief Executive Norman Chan and Legislative
Council President Jasper Tsang Yok-sing. We also heard from
renowned economists John Greenwood, Dan Steinbock, Richard
Wong Yue-chim and Jim Walker, as well as international thought
leaders like Professor Sunil Kumar, the Dean of the University of
Chicago Booth School of Business, Schneider Electric Chairman
and CEO Jean-Pascal Tricoire and GE Vice Chairman John Rice.

Our outgoing missions offered members new insights into

familiar places and first-hand experiences in those less frequently

visited. Two key missions during the year were our high-level

business delegations to Beijing, and to Guangzhou. On both
missions we met with various Central Government leaders
and ministries. We also organized trips to over a dozen other

Mainland cities, while overseas we visited Kazakhstan and Russia.

Closer to home, your Chamber carries on offering exclusive site
visits to places not usually open to the public. In this year, these
included ExxonMobil's West Terminal, the Nano and Advanced
Materials Institute, the Park Island green residential building, Yau
Ma Tei and Ping Shan heritage sites, SGS's R&D Centre, Kowloon
Bay Waste Recycling Centre, the New Kai Tak Development
Area, Eu Yan Sang traditional Chinese medicine facilities and the

Government Dockyard.

The road ahead of us sometimes seems very challenging, but,
as we have all come to know, Hong Kong's can-do spirit and
unigue competitive advantages make our home one of the
finest business and financial centres in the world. I'm optimistic
that we will continue to overcome difficulties and capitalise on

the challenges in the years ahead.
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My optimism is due in part to the excellent work of the
Chamber's committees and secretariat. Despite the challenges
facing Hong Kong and the world, the Chamber is the clear voice
of reason within Hong Kong's business community. This is due
in-no small measure to the excellent work of the Chamber's
committees who analyze policies, and thrash out practical
proposals that have Hong Kong's best interests at heart. The
quality of the Chamber's submissions would not have been
possible without the hard work and commitment of members
who serve on our committees. | would like to express my
personal gratitude to all those members who contributed their

time, expertise and ideas to the Chamber's policy submissions.

By remaining relevant to your needs, we are able to remain
financially sound, expand our membership and services and
upgrade operations. We have achieved this through the hard
work of the Chairman's Committee, Deputy Chairman Y K Pang;
Vice Chairmen Victor Li, Stephen Ng, and Christopher Pratt;
LegCo Representative the Honourable Jeffrey Lam, and our CEO
Shirley Yuen.

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce  Annual Report 2013

Finally, I would like to express my appreciation to the Chamber
staff for the hard work they put in during the year. They can

be justifiably proud of the excellent shape that the Chamber's
services, finances and operations are in. You can read the full
financial performance elsewhere in this Annual Report. | hope
the entire membership and secretariat will join me ensuring the
Chamber continues to grow and prosper, continues to make a
positive contribution to Hong Kong, and continues to represent
the view of the entire business community.

CUK ey

C K Chow
Chairman
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CEQ's Report

The Chamber had a very p
as the number, quality and ¢
and work resulted in a steady g
participation rate.
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CEO’s Report

The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce mirrored

Hong Kong in 2013. We worked hard to counteract the global
economic malaise, and looked to enhance our services and
events through innovative ideas and resolve. As a result, just
like Hong Kong, business was better than expected, as were our
membership recruitment and renewal results, and our financial
results closed the year in excellent shape. And, like Hong Kong,
we were preoccupied with a number of issues that would
significantly affect the future of Hong Kong.

We had a very productive year as the number, quality and
participation rate of the Chamber's events and services all
registered growth in 2013. We organized around 250 events,
which meant something was going on for members on just
about every working day. The attendance rate for all our events
increased by 26% over 2012's figures, and most encouragingly,
members' participation rate has shown steady growth — from
committee meetings and knowledge events to networking
functions — which is a clear indication of the improved quality of

our services.

Senior Government officials and
business leaders were regular faces at
many of the Chamber's events in 2013.
2013%F - BB ERAFBRASENE
REAMBEASTES -

Chamber Chairman C K Chow and CEO

Shirley Yuen hosted a press conference
to announce HKGCC Free Ride Day
would take place on May 29.
AEEEFERERARRDEER
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Our physical activities were further complemented by our wider
and improved online presence. We launched HKGCC pages

on the social media sites Facebook, Linkedin and Flickr to

make the work and services of the Chamber known to a wider
audience. We also significantly enhanced the ease of use and
attractiveness of the Membership recruitment section of our
website. And not forgetting that we are a business chamber, we
revamped our online certification and business documentation
services, which has resulted in 85% of all CO applications being
processed online.

Business Advocacy
The ongoing labour shortage and ageing population challenge

were a core element of the Chamber's work in 2013. We
lobbied Government to allow importation of labour in certain
sectors suffering from acute labour shortages, such as the
construction and elderly care sectors. Some progress has been
made as the Labour Advisory Board reached a consensus to
expedite the process of admitting overseas workers for 26 trades
in the construction sector. The Government is also conducting a

consultation on extending the retirement age of civil servants.
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The Chamber offered a wide variety of
events for members, from cocktail receptions
to training seminars to awards ceremonies.
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EHIREEARAEE . BRESR -

BEEEE FH=0—-=

21




CEQ’s Report » #H ;| &

Other key concems for business remain the proposed legislation
of standard working hours, abolishing the MPF offsetting
mechanism for long service payments, and improving air quality,
among others. The Government is taking steps to protect
consumers' interests, alleviate poverty, and reduce excessively
long working hours, which the Chamber supports. However, we
do not believe that legislation is the solution, because it does
not address the root causes of these problems. We lobbied
Government through private meetings, our ongoing Town Hall
Forum Series, as well as presented our views through sound

policy submissions, and articles in the media.

Connecting Businesses
2013 saw us travelling to Kazakhstan and Russia, as well as over a

dozen cities in the Mainland. We also welcomed delegations from
around the world, which gave members the chance to learn first-
hand about the local business environment and opportunities in
cities which they would ordinarily not consider visiting. Members
also had the opportunity to further their interational contacts
through our cocktail receptions with consuls general in Hong
Kong, luncheons with Hong Kong and Mainland officials, as well

as our popular Meet the Minister Series.

Our Business Summit at the end of the year once again showed
clearly that the Chamber is Hong Kong's leading business
organization as top business minds shared their views with
members, including: Norman Chan, Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority; John Rice, Vice Chairman, GE;
Jay Walder, CEQ, MTRC; Peter Wong, Deputy Chairman and
Chief Executive, HSBC; and Michael J Andrew, Chairman, KPMG
International. A similarly impressive line-up of speakers spoke at
the Chamber's biennial CEO Manpower Conference in October
on a very pressing issue for Hong Kong: "Are Manpower Issues
Limiting Business Growth? What Are The Alternatives?"

One of the key reasons that new members state for joining the
Chamber is to expand their networking circles. Consequently,
we organized more less formal, but no less useful, events for
members, which included Happy Hour, Meet the Chairman
Cocktail, and our very popular site visits and roundtable
luncheons. We also put a lot of effort into organizing lifestyle
events for members who are looking for camaraderie, while
networking and having fun. These ranged from wine tasting and
food pairing, to test driving sports cars and health management
with gi gong.

The heads of HSBC, MTRC and
GE were among the household
names who spoke at the Chamber's
Business Summit.

EZ - BEKGEZZRABLENE
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General Committee member
K K Yeung hosted a dinner on
October 4 for the Commissioner
of Police Andy Tsang Wai-
hung, and the Chamber's SME
Committee members.
BESERBEBFM0A4E 5
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The Chamber organized regular cocktail
receptions during the year for members
to expand their networking circles.
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HKGCC members were given
a privileged preview of the Hong Kong
Science and Technology Parks'
carbon neutral Phase 3.
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Business Services during the year, while income from net realized gains from
HKGCC's Certificate of Origin Division is by far the main source the disposal of investment funds accounted for $1.2 million.

of income for the Chamber. Although the total number of CO Collectively, income grew by $6.9 million, but was accompanied
applications processed fell by 7.3%, the division was able to by a $5.0 million increase in expenditure and tax against last

raise income by 13.8% over 2012's figure, due mainly to growth  year. The assets portfolio of the Chamber was managed carefully

in demand for Camnets, as well as the launch of new document to achieve a balance between growth and stability. Funds
certification services. The division expanded its online services, managed by our investment manager enjoyed a moderate
to speed up applications and save members time, which have growth of 7.5% and were valued at $258.4 million by year end.

helped slow the decline in CO applications.

Our training services helped over 2,000 people improve their
professional skills in 2013, and training courses is one area
which continues to receive strong demand, due mainly to the
quality and professionalism of the instruction that we provide.
Shirley Yuen
Chamber Finances CEO
The Chamber's finances finished 2013 in very strong shape,
registering a surplus of $15.5 million in 2013, an increase of
$1.9 million or 13.9% over 2012. Growth in income from daily

operations registered the strongest increase, at $5.7 million

Site inspection visits in 2013 included seeing how
the Government is preparing youngsters to enter the
workforce, as well as how some companies are saving
money and reducing their carbon footprint through
environmentally friendly technologies.
AERN2013FEN T ZEEMWEEE) - ARBE T BK
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To serve members who are interested in non-
business social activities, we organized a car
test drive, wine appreciation workshop, sporting
tournaments as well as a scavenger hunt with
InvestHK to raise money for the Community Chest.
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Digital, Information and
Telecommunications Committee

A key project for the committee in 2013 was formulating

the Chamber's suggestions in response to the consultation

on the Government's Digital 21 Strategy. A working group

was established to craft the submission to steer the future
development of Hong Kong's ICT industry. The committee also
submitted its views on the frequency spectrum for 3G mobile

services consultation.

The DIT Committee also put a lot of effort into studying new
Internet regulations, as well as copyright and security issues. The
Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data briefed members on the
new regulatory regime for direct marketing, while the Director

of Intellectual Property shared the Government's policies and
initiatives on Internet copyright and IP trading in Hong Kong. The
Hong Kong Police Force updated members on the trend of cyber
crime and online security, while member company Herbert
Smith Freehills shared case studies on legal issues concemning
the use of social media.

Environment and Sustainability Committee

The Committee wrote two major submissions in response to the
Government's consultations on "A New Producer Responsibility
Scheme on Glass Beverage Bottles" and "Tackling Nuisance
and Energy Wastage Caused by Excessive External Lighting."
The Chamber has long been a supporter of the polluter-

pays principle, and we recommended that the producer
responsibility scheme be progressively applied to various
wastes, where feasible, as part of a comprehensive policy on
waste management. The Chamber also supported the proposal
to switch off external lighting after a preset time via a charter
scheme, instead of legislation, and contributed our views on the
Air Pollution Control (Amendment) Bill, and the Interim Review

on Scheme of Control Agreements in 2013.

The Chamber's LegCo Representative,
the Honourable Jeffrey Lam, hosted a
visit for members to the new LegCo
Building at Tamar.
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Chief Executive, C Y Leung
Chief Secretary, Carrie Lam
Financial Secretary, John Tsang Chun-wah
Secretary for Justice, Rimsky Yuen

Secretary for Transport and Housing, Professor Anthony Cheung
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury, K C Chan
Commissioner of Police, Andy Tsang Wai-hung
The Commissioner of Customs and Excise, Clement Cheung
LegCo President, Jasper Tsang Yok-sing
Executive Council, Non-official Member, Bernard Chan
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Financial and Treasury Services Committee

During the year under review, members had an informal meeting
with Under Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury Julia
Leung on asset management.

HSBC Head of Strategy and Planning Johnny Cheng also briefed
members on the internationalization of RMB, while Federation
of Hong Kong Insurers Chairman Thomas Lee discussed

the challenges and opportunities for the insurance industry.
Chamber LegCo Representative the Hon Jeffrey Lam also briefed
members on his work in the Legislative Council and how he
reflects the views and interests of Chamber members.

The launch of the China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone was
of great interest to the financial services sector. Shiming Tan,
Director, Global RMB Product Manager, Markets and Treasury
and Trade Solutions of Citibank N. A. Hong Kong, shared his
insights on the zone.

Financial Services Development Council (FSDC) members
briefed members on the council's research reports, which aim
to strengthen Hong Kong's position as an interational financial

centre and the development of the financial services industry.

lan Burchett, Consul General of
Canada, spoke on the importance of
the Canada - Hong Kong Avoidance
of Double Taxation Agreement.
MEREERABESAFRIN (MEX
HEEERAEEHBIHE) NERY - .
Government officials
provided important updates
on Government policies
and plans during Chamber
committee meetings.
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HKCSI Executive Committee

HKCSI, the service sector policy think tank of the Chamber,
continued to monitor WTO negotiations, particularly development
of trade in services agreements, and members received regular
updates from the Trade and Industry Department. Members had
useful exchanges with Ambassador Jonathan Fried, Permanent
Representative of Canada to the WTO and Chairperson of

the WTO Dispute Settlement Body, on the services industry's
aspirations for trade liberalization. Members also discussed the
developments at APEC and ABAC relating to trade policies and

service quality.

During the year, two submissions were sent to the Trade and
Industry Department supporting and welcoming the Hong
Kong Government's participation in the negotiations on trade
in services agreements with suggestions on market access for
specific areas such as financial services, professional services,
telecommunications and other related aspects.

Anthony Nightingale,
Hong Kong's long-standing
APEC Business Advisory
Council member, updated
members on the role
that Hong Kong is playing
in APEC to encourage
liberalization.
DARSEBHEZAES
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The Environment and
Sustainability Committee
organized a number of site visits
to recycling facilities in Hong Kong.
RERVHERRESSENZE

B EEGEE)  RE S TIRAEN Daniel Lai, Government
e Chief Information Officer,

spoke on the Digital 21
Strategy Consultation.
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The Chamber collected members’
ideas and aspirations at two policy
forums in October, which formed the
basis of our 2014-15 Policy Address
cum Budget Submission.
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As the Government is actively participating in negotiations of
plurilateral agreement on trade in services, Assistant Director
General of Trade and Industry Howard Yam briefed members on
the Trade in Services Agreement and how it will benefit Hong
Kong.

Members met with Permanent Secretary for Food and Health
Richard Yuen, and Permanent Secretary for Transport and
Housing (Housing) Duncan Pescod, to exchange views on

specific issues affecting Hong Kong.

To raise the quality of service in the services industry,
representatives from Cathay Pacific, HSBC, Ocean Park and TSL
Jewellery shared their experiences on training frontline staff.

Industry and Technology Committee

The committee continued to drive for innovation and technology
development in Hong Kong. Members met with various industry
and technology bodies to exchange views on fostering a culture

of innovation and technology excellence.

~0
_gies Limiting Business

Fresanied by

wer Conferenceé =t
Growth? What Are The Alterna®

The Chamber has been the major driver of the "Hong Kong
Awards for Industries," a premier business awards scheme
championed by the HKSAR Government, and the Lead Organizer
of the "Innovation and Creativity." The committee organized a
seminar in April to promote and encourage Chamber members
to enter the awards. Some 40 entries were received, and seven

winners were awarded at a presentation ceremony in October.

Labour Strategy Working Group

With the emergence of several major labour issues and the
growing sentiment of the business sector on such issues,

the Chamber re-constituted the Sub-committee on Standard
Working Hours under the Manpower Committee into a new
Labour Strategy Working Group in June 2013 so that the scope
of its mandate be broadened to cover a wider perspective. In
particular, the Working Group would look into ways to ensure
that Hong Kong will continue to have an efficient, effective as
well as flexible workforce to sustain Hong Kong's long-term

competitiveness.

Chief Secretary for

Administration Carrie Lam
was the keynote speaker at the biennial
CEO Manpower Conference.
B B B RAER A AR
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Member participation in
committees saw a steadily increase
during the year under review.
BEEEENE B2 HRFRRE
FPRIER -

As the Chamber initiated the concept
of CEPA, we organized a special seminar
in September to mark the
10th anniversary of the Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangement.
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ROA DRI ERE R S E AR -
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Manpower Committee

The Manpower Committee provided practical views in support
of the Chamber's submissions to the Government relating to the
labour shortage, minimum wage, standard working hours, MPF
offsetting mechanism, population policy, vocational training, and
talent development. Besides organizing two site visits during

the year under review to see how educational institutions are
preparing youngsters for the workforce, the committee also
organized a roundtable with Dr York Chow, Chairperson of Equal
Opportunities Commission, to discuss discrimination in the

workplace.

Real Estate and Infrastructure Committee

Land, housing, and infrastructure development continued to
top the list of the Government's policy agenda in 2013. The
committee studied consultations covering railways, harbour
crossings, land and housing supply, the establishment of a
Harbourfront Authority, Kowloon East, and the overheated
property market.

The committee invited Government officials to share with

members the Administration's priorities and policies on

addressing unauthorized building works, future land supply and
the proposed mono-rail system of Kowloon East, among others.
On the future development of Kowloon East — Kwun Tong,
Kowloon Bay and Kai Tak Development Area — the committee
visited Energizing Kowloon East Office to see firsthand the area's

development and impact on Hong Kong's property market.

Retail and Tourism Committee

During the year, the committee looked into a wide array of
issues, including the development plan for Lantau, transforming
Kowloon East into another premier CBD, the Employees
Retraining Board's effectiveness, and the impact of the new

Mainland Tourism Law.

The introduction of the Trade Descriptions (Unfair Trade
Practices) (Amendment) Ordinance 2012 created a lot of
concemns among the retail sector due to a lack of clarity. The
Chamber also issued a press statement pointing out that

more clarity was need in addressing ambiguities, such as on
"misleading omission," and when criminal prosecutions instead
of civil remedies would be pursued.

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce Annual Report 2013
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Dr York Chow, Chairperson of the
Equal Opportunities Commission,
introduced employment regulations
that businesses need to be aware of.
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Heads of some of Hong Kong's most
admired companies spoke to a full-
house on the importance of ensuring
quality service to their customers.
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To answer members' questions on the ordinance, the committee
invited Commissioner of Customs and Excise Clement Cheung,
and Clifford Chance Head of Antitrust — Hong Kong, Stephen
Crosswell, to speak at a Chamber seminar and provide practical
advice on avoiding potential pitfalls of the revisions.

Shipping and Transport Committee

The committee met with the Working Group on Transportation
under the Economic Development Commission Convenor

C K Chow to exchange views on developing Hong Kong's port,
maritime and logistics capabilities. A policy paper was then
submitted, advocating a territory-wide land supply strategy

and strengthening Hong Kong's role as a transhipment centre.
The Chamber also suggested attracting more talent, ensuring

a sufficient labour supply, and speeding up double taxation

negotiations.

Consumer Council Chief Executive
Gilly Wong and Senior Legal Counsel
Eddie Ng updated the Retail and
Tourism Committee on efforts to
protect the interests of consumers.
HBEZRERARSERMARSRE
REERZEE  NEERKEREESS
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Throughout the year, members were briefed on important
issues that will impact Hong Kong's future competitiveness,
including the development of the airport's third runway, mega
vessels intensifying container port competition, RFID applications
for shipping and transport sectors, as well as investments in

container throughput capacity and operational efficiency.

SME Committee

The Chamber organized a media briefing to enable SME
members to express their grievances and concerns on the
acute labour shortage and the proposed legislation on standard
working hours.

phen Cy

The introduction of the Trade Descriptions (Unfair Trade
Practices) (Amendment) Ordinance 2012 in July 2013 created
a lot of confusion among businesses, so the Chamber invited

Commissioner of Customs and Excise Clement Cheung, and
Clifford Chance Head of Antitrust Hong Kong Stephen Crosswell
to answer members' questions and concerns.
0125EmHRP (FREBMFE) (BRI A 2120135
THEK - BAHERBIIRARER - Bt - AHSBEEHEER
REERSEHZMTERSEN  RHEMRESENEERREE



REEEEHGIINER  ZESREREEMARERE
ERBEGEINTERGEN  ERASHEE - st
BRRELBRHEERANES -

M REHESE

ZEEFNALERRZESE TOMEX TGS
ABREEE  BERNENED - AUENYIRENRE
BEHKR ZREERAERRZ—MEBEXM - RIEDFT
SR LI HERE - URIBEEENFEFLAS - &
BEINERWRIIEZ AT - RS THETE - AR
ERE BRI o

BREEENERE  FERIINSEAREBEERIHEEN
MBEZE  BEMSEZRENERE  REMmMNEE
BIRENET - FUBRMNST SRR (RFID) AMTERA - A
EEBEAETEMEERERNERSE

PNEEREESE

RESEFRRERERE  FT/EEGREREHST
BERRREETRIDEZHRNEBNEL -

The Shipping and Transport
Committee organized an
informative site visit to the
Government Dockyard to see how
the Marine Department carries out
ship maintenance and repair work.
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The Chamber organized o

cocktail receptions to overseas b
missions, with the goal of helping
members connect with businesses loc
and internationally.

EaEe ﬁFiﬁ:OE{\



Building Connections

=V

Hong Kong

The Chamber's flagship event, "The Annual Hong Kong Business
Summit," took place on November 25. Norman Chan, Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, delivered the
keynote address, while prominent speakers from Hong Kong and
the region spoke on specific challenges to their business sectors.
These included: John Rice, Vice Chairman, GE; Jay Walder, CEO,
MTRC; Peter Wong, Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive, HSBC;

and Michael J Andrew, Chairman, KPMG International.

Another major conference was the Manpower Committee's
biennial CEO Manpower Conference, which took place on October
24 under the banner: "Are Manpower Issues Limiting Business
Growth? What Are The Alternatives?" Prominent business leaders,
including Christopher Pratt, Chairman of John Swire & Sons (HK),
Raymond Chien, Chairman of MTR Corporation and Hang Seng
Bank, and Nicholas Sallnow-Smith, Chairman of The Link, led the
discussion on manpower management, while the Honourable
Carrie Lam Cheng Yuent-ngor, Chief Secretary for Administration,
gave members a preview of the Population Policy consultation

paper during the luncheon keynote address.

-Jwer Conferenc.
€8 Limiting Business Growth? What Are The N

Prosaniod by

Y e Hong Kong Jockes Clab

As Hong Kong's peg to the US dollar celebrated its 30th
anniversary in 2013, the Chamber invited "the Father of the

Peg" John Greenwood, to speak to members at a Distinguished
Speakers Series Luncheon. Greenwood discussed how the
30-year-old peg has served Hong Kong, as well as the options and
risks of de-pegging.

Schneider Electric's Chairman and CEO Jean-Pascal Tricoire spoke

at the Chamber's second Distinguished Speakers Series Luncheon,
on how our natural resources are increasingly under pressure due
to urbanization, industrialization and digitization.

The Chief Executive C Y Leung spoke at the Joint Business
Community Luncheon organized by the Chamber on his Policy
Address, and also at a specially convened luncheon to convey
the Government's plans to tackle the land and housing shortage
in Hong Kong. Financial Secretary John Tsang also addressed the
business community on his annual Budget.

The Chamber's biennial CEO

Manpower Conference examined

challenges facing businesses.
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The heads of some of Hong Kong's
leading corporations spoke at the
Chamber's 19th Annual Hong Kong
Business Summit.
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Schneider Electric's Chairman and
CEO Jean-Pascal Tricoire spoke at
the Chamber's second Distinguished
Speakers Series Luncheon
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As Hong Kong's peg to the
US dollar celebrated its
30th anniversary in 2013,
the Chamber invited "the
Father of the Peg," John
Greenwood, to speak to
members at a Distinguished
Speakers Series Luncheon.
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Building Connections

BUBE

To facilitate a closer dialogue with the Government, and to provide
members with opportunities to meet ministers face-to-face, the
Chamber continued to organize the popular "Town Hall Forum
Series: Meet the Ministers' with Government officials in 2013.
Members of the General Committee and committee chairman
also hosted informal luncheons with ministers to present the

Chamber's views and discuss policy developments.

During the year under review, the Industry & Technology
Committee organized a number of events to promote home-
grown innovations applicable to businesses, including briefings
and showcase visits to various parks and universities. It also
organized the "Hong Kong Awards for Industries: Innovation and
Creativity," a premier business awards scheme championed by
the HKSAR Government.

Site Inspection Programmes

The Industry & Technology Committee took the lead in organizing
site inspection programmes for members, including visits to the
ExxonMobil Hong Kong West Terminal, Eu Yan Sang, House of
Innovation of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, i-mfg Centre
of the Hong Kong Productivity Council, Nano and Advanced
Materials Institute, Science Park Phase 3, SGS Testing Laboratories
and Vogue Laundry.

Site inspection programmes continue to be
very popular with members, and in 2013
the Membership Division added historical
walking tours for members interested in

Hong Kong's hlstory and culture.

B E ST BEE B0 © 20134 »
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The Environment & Sustainability Committee organized several
site inspection programmes to enhance environmental awareness
among our members and promote best practices. These included
visits to Ricoh's Environmental Technical Centre and LIVE Office,
Park Island, Dragon King's environmental kitchen, TIOSTONE's
glass recycling process plant, as well as visits to two major
Government waste facilities — Kowloon Bay Waste Recycling
Centre and Ta Kwu Ling Landfill. These were complemented by
two briefing sessions examining the sustainable energy policy and

waste charging.

The DIT Committee updated members on services and products
offered by the ICT industry through site visits, such as a site
inspection programme to Studio of Digital Magic Limited for
members to learn about 3D technologies in digital entertainment.
The committee also visited Cyberport to lear about funding,
facilities and business collaborative opportunities provided by the

Government to ICT enterprises.

Other visits included a tour of the Government Dockyard to see
how the Marine Department carries out ship maintenance and
repair work, and visits to Baptist University and the Hong Kong
Design Institute & IVE (Lee Wai Lee).
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Mainland

China's economy continued to shrug off the gloom that lingered
in many developed nations. Consequently, the China Committee
organized 17 seminars to keep members abreast of the rapidly
changing policies and market trends in the Mainland. Several
significant policy changes affecting businesses were enacted in the
Mainland in 2013, including taxation, labour regulations, the China
(Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone, and preferential policies in the

new districts of Hengqin, Nansha and Qianhai.

The Chamber also organized missions to these new areas

in Guangdong to obtain first-hand information about their
development and investment opportunities. The China
Committee organized useful missions to the Mainland in 2013,
including a high-level mission to Guangdong, where members
called on Zhu Xiaodan, Governor of Guangdong Province and

a high-level mission to Beijing on November. In addition, the
Chamber also organized missions to Fuzhou, Pingtan, Hangzhov,
Shaoxing, Yiwu, Chengdu, Guiyang, Xiamen, Zhengzhou and
Nanning. The missions enhanced members' understanding of
the Mainland business environment and helped them establish

new connections.

The Chamber organized two high-level
missions to the Mainland in 2013 to meet with
various government leaders. HKGCC Chairman

C K Chow led a delegation to Guangzhou
in January, and to Beijing in November.
HEEN2013FEM T MESEANtEHEE
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In addition to helping members connect with Mainland officials
and businesses on missions, receiving incoming delegations
enables members to expand their networks. Delegations from
provinces and cities across the Mainland and leaders from various
central ministries visited the Chamber every week in 2013 to
exchange views, explore opportunities for cooperation with our
members and promote investment in their municipalities. A

total of 82 visitors and delegations from the Mainland visited the
Chamber during the year under review.

Five Memorandums of Understanding were signed during the year

with, respectively:

o Chongqing Foreign Trade and Economic Relations Commission,

o Wuzhou Municipality Government of Guangxi,

o Commerce Department of Anhui Province, and

o the Administrative Committee of Guangzhou Nansha Economic
and Technological Development Zone.
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The China Committee organized almost
monthly missions to various Mainland
cities in 2013 for members to explore

business opportunities. It also welcomed
82 delegations from the Mainland and

hosted China cocktail receptions to help
members expand their contacts.
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Taiwan Interest Group

The Taiwan Interest Group examined opportunities for Hong
Kong, Taiwan and the Mainland after the implementation of

the Economic Cooperation Framework Agreement (ECFA). The
Chamber organized a seminar with the heads of four major
Taiwanese organizations in Hong Kong to update members on
economic policy developments being driven by closer cooperation
on both sides of the Taiwan Strait.

Americas

The Chamber's Americas Committee strove to organize a diverse
selection of events in 2013 focusing on many of the countries on
the continent. The highlight of its event calendar was the biannual
cocktail reception with Consuls General of the Americas in Hong
Kong, which took place in May and October. The committee also
organized country briefings on Chile, the United States of America,
in addition to a seminar on avoidance of double taxation between
Hong Kong and Canada.

The committee welcomed a number of visitors from the
Americas, and Committee Vice Chairman Thomas Wong signed

a Memorandum of Understanding with the Bogota Chamber of
Commerce on July 29, 2013, in Colombia, to expand cooperation

with the country.

Asia & Africa

To inform members about developments and opportunities in
South Africa and the BRICS, the committee organized a seminar
on these regions with the Consul General of South Africa. It

also hosted its biannual cocktail reception in honour of Consuls
General of the Asia-Pacific, Africa and Middle East regions in
Hong Kong. To facilitate cross-cooperation with other committees,
as initiated by Committee Chairman Marc Castagnet, a joint
roundtable luncheon on China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone
was organized with the China Committee. More joint events will
be organized in 2014.

The Consulate General of the Republic of Korea in Hong Kong
invited the Chamber to speak at its conference in Seoul on
"FTAs in Greater China: Implications for Korea-China FTA." The
Chamber's Senior Director for Business Policy and China, Watson

Chan, gave a speech on CEPA.

The committee also received a number of visitors and delegations
from around the world, including Bangladesh, Iran, Japan,
Malaysia, Nepal, New Zealand, Seychelles, Singapore and UAE,
among others, seeking closer cooperation with the Chamber and
Hong Kong.

Cocktail receptions with
Consuls General in Hong
Kong are very popular
with members.
RBEESRE—ERZ
gaE0 -
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A Country Briefing Series was
launched in 2013 so that
Consuls General could speak
specifically about business
opportunities in their countries.
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Americas Committee Vice
Chairman Thomas Wong signed
an MOU with the Bogota Chamber
of Commerce in Colombia.
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CEO Shirley Yuen welcomed
members to the cocktail reception
for Consuls General of Asian, African
and Middle Eastern regions.
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The Chamber's geographical
committees welcomed visitors
from all over the world in 2013.
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Europe

The key event for the Europe Committee in 2013 was its mission
to Almaty, Kazakhstan, and Moscow, Russia, from May 19-25.
The 12-member delegation, led by Europe Committee Chairman
Neville Shroff, explored business opportunities in the two
countries.

China's Ambassador to Russia Li Hui welcomed the delegates
in Moscow and briefed them on local political and economic
developments. Members also visited the special economic zone

of Kaluga, Sberbank, and attended the Asia Business Forum.

Following the mission, the Chamber welcomed several delegations
from Russian organizations looking to expand cooperation with
the Chamber and Hong Kong. To strengthen cooperation between
the Chamber and Russia, three Memorandums of Understanding
were signed during the year with, respectively: Moscow Innovation
Development Centre; Russian Leaders Club for the Promotion of

Business Initiatives; and Russia-Hong Kong Business Association.

The committee launched the "Country Briefing Series" to update
members on political and economic developments in a respective

country. Invited speakers were the country's Consul General in

The Europe Committee organized
a six-day mission to Kazakhstan and
Russia in May, which was followed up
with the signing of three MOUs with
Russian business organizations
visiting Hong Kong.
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Hong Kong, together with businesspeople, who shared their
know-how of doing business in featured countries, which
included briefings on France, Russia, European Union, United
Kingdom, ltaly and The Netherlands. Members also had the
chance to meet Consuls General in a more informal setting at
two cocktail receptions in honour of European Consuls General
in Hong Kong, organized in June and November.

Dozens of delegations and visitors from Europe seeking to build
ties and cooperation with Hong Kong businesses also called on
the Chamber in 2013.

Women Executives Club

The Chamber's Women Executives Club (WEC) continued to
organize a variety of activities in 2013, including its "Work-Life
Balance Series," health-related workshops, and social events,
such as sake tasting and the art of gi-gong. It also launched a
breakfast briefing series in late 2013, with successful female

speakers sharing how they overcame challenges in their careers.
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French Consul General Arnaud Arthélémy, British
Consul General Caroline Wilson, and Italian Consul
General Alessandra Schiavo, respectively, were
among the guests who spoke at the Chamber's
Country Briefing Series seminars in 2013.
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The Women Executives Club
hosted a variety of events in
2013, from visiting cruise ships to
breakfast meetings with successful
women in Hong Kong.
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Chamber Development

KEBRRE

Membership

Efforts to expand semvices, diversify events and enrich
information provided for members, as well as raise the profile
of the Chamber paid off in 2013, despite the difficult business

environment.

Efforts to improve membership recruitment and retention
figures in the past few years continued to bear fruit in 2013. The
membership renewal rate reached the highest rate in the past

6 years, due to greater emphasis on keeping in close contact
with members, diversifying services and events, and intensifying
our lobbying work. For the small percentage of companies who
did not renew, we collected their comments through an exit
letter. We will use their suggestions to enhance our products and

services, and build on the encouraging renewal trend.

To make the work and services of the Chamber known to a
wider area, we launched HKGCC pages on LinkedIn, Facebook,
and Flickr. Although it is still too early to see if these new
platforms have contributed to membership recruitment, the
growing number of followers indicates that, at the very least,
they are spreading the name and work of the Chamber to a new

sector of the community.

As over a quarter of new membership applications are made

via the Chamber's website, we sought to enhance the ease

and attractiveness of our online application section and process
in 2013. We also completely redesigned our membership
recruitment materials to present a modemn, vibrant image of

the Chamber. We put a considerable amount of attention into
attracting young enterprises and start-ups to join the Chamber to

improve their networks and business intelligence.

One of the key reasons that new members list for joining the
Chamber is to expand their contacts and do more networking. As
such, the Chamber worked hard to organize a diverse range of
networking functions in 2013. These ranged from formal cocktail
receptions with Consuls General in Hong Kong to Happy Hours
and from test driving the latest cars to walking along historic
trails. We also reinstated the Chamber's Chinese New Year
Dinner by popular demand from members.
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-—ﬁ The Membership Division organized
e a variety of lifestyle events in

2013, such as this wine and oyster
appreciation workshop.
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Join Us

To encourage more businesses
to join the Chamber, the
Membership Division produced
new marketing materials and
redesigned the 'Join Us' section of
the Chamber website.
. . \ i ABBMEZLEAS  SENARA
The Chamber's annual Christmas Cocktail ' = = = EeSNEERRAEN [RE
at Hong Kong Club allows members to s s = : & i B =E HBETRE
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Training Services

Throughout the year, the Chamber organized over 90 workshops
and training courses, which were attended by over 2,000 people.
Topics covered included finance, human resources practices,
marketing, customer relations, interpersonal communications,
leadership, organizational change, and negotiation skills, among
others. Tailor-made training programmes were also organized for
members upon request.

Community Engagement
Media Relations

The Chamber strove to further enhance its relations with
members of the media to ensure that the Chamber's views and
positions are clearly and accurately made known to the general
public. The Chamber Chairman and CEQ also hosted meetings
for senior reporters and editors to openly exchange views.

In addition to issuing regular press releases, often to inform
the press about the details of our policy submissions, we also
published timely Op-Eds in 2013 in selected local newspapers

on key concerns to members, in addition to regular opinion
pieces in local media. The Chamber leadership also met with
members of the local and international press for individual

interviews, both in the print and broadcast media.

The Bulletin

The Chamber's monthly magazine, The Bulletin, is the main
communication channel to keep members abreast of upcoming
and past programmes, as well as Chamber positions, and
updates to new policies. The magazine continually strives to
improve its contents and usefulness to members, as well as
encourages members to be more involved with the Chamber.
The Member Profile section continues to be a useful platform for
new members to gain exposure among the wider membership.
More members are also taking up the invitation to contribute
articles on their area of expertise, which facilitates their outreach
as well as enriches the editorial contents. The magazine now has
a strong readership online, with the highest monthly download
rate being over 33,000, which was for the April 2013 issue.

To spread the name and work of the Chamber
to a wider audience and to take advantage of
social media, the Chamber launched pages on

Facebook, LinkedIn and Flickr in 2013.
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The Chamber's exposure in the media was
enhanced through press releases, Op-Eds, and briefings
N 2 ! with members of the print and broadcast press.
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Website

The Chamber's backend website services, including servers, data
management, and email services were enhanced in 2013. We
also began experimenting with social media to reach out to a
wider audience and launched HKGCC pages on Flickr, LinkedIn
and also Facebook. The initial response was encouraging and the

Chamber now has a steady following of users on the three sites.

Free Ride Day

The third HKGCC Free Ride took place on May 29, the date of
the Chamber's establishment in 1861, to show our care and
involvement with the community and Hong Kong. The event
allowed members of the public and tourists to ride on all trams
running along Hong Kong Island and two Star Ferry routes free of

charge.

Chamber Chairman C K Chow, General Committee members,
LegCo Representative the Honourable Jeffrey Lam, and CEO
Shirley Yuen greeted members of the public on trams and ferries.
Members sponsoring the event said they were very happy to be a
part of such a meaningful event, as by contributing to society, they
also conveyed the message that their companies put "customers
first" Over 300,000 people from all walks of life, both locals and

visitors, benefited from HKGCC Free Ride Day. S
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Good Citizen/Award

The Good Citizen Award (GCA) celebrated its 40th anniversary in
2013. As the Chamber has been the sole sponsor of the award
since its inception in 1973, we used the occasion to encourage
members and the public to make a donation to top up the fund.
A Good Citizen Award Commemorative Booklet was published
as part of the celebrations, in addition to a new "Heart of Gold
Award," which was presented to three former awardees for their
exceptional deeds. As the cash reward presented to winners

had remained constant for many years, the Chamber decided to

increased the amount.

Business-School Partnership Programme

The Business-School Partnership Programme (BSPP) continues
to grow as it gains wider recognition and support from both
businesses and schools. A record 54 secondary schools and
member companies participated in the programme for the
school year 2013-14. To allow more students to benefit from the
programme, the Chamber decided to invite Chinese medium

secondary schools to participate in the scheme.

HKGCC Free Ride Day
= ':f‘.:{".'r_;i- E?‘T .‘:’r’} ,_-_’;:_/%‘:r J/'a :.”I‘\ - B 15
29 May, 2013 :




%@\Fﬁ = llHJE

BB R2013F MR %mA R - BIERAMREE - &
BEE R EEAR o ﬁﬁDﬁ'\%ﬁﬁ‘*%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ?\iiﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁ
%ZEER » fEFlickr » LinkedInFFacebook % T8 E <

B - YIXRETHELE iﬁﬁv%@ﬁzﬁA:ﬂ?E%ﬁﬁ%EE@
RPXH.

ll‘lL,\ Fﬁ & é*iﬁ N

ARERMEESCHNBENSE - AR5 200 8
TEDR [BEEReriRAR] ERETRMERE
BEENEIER  RBERESE2REENMIERE NR
MR -

WA T ERRE  ZAEE  DAERRMREHEER
RERETIR  DAEENRRRETRLT - BEZ
REBNEEF  ABRARE  TEUNEELE @ B
AAMEERRARTRENFE - RINEEHEBBI0EBAT
RMBESXE -

The third Free Ride Day was launched
at a press conference on May 9 with
supporting organizations.
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The Good Citizen Award celebrated its 40th
anniversary in 2013. The Chamber produced a special
booklet on the history of the award, and presented
three 'Heart of Gold' awards to past winners.
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Growing interest in BSPP is partly due to monthly reports on
students' activities in The Bulletin, as well as media partner,
"ctgoodjobs." Throughout the year, various activities were
organized by member companies to enhance students' business
and workplace knowledge.

Community Wide

In addition the three major community engagement programmes
mentioned above, the Chamber also supported the WiseGiving
Charitable Trust by donating $200,000 in funding for the
"Upward Mobility Formula" under the "Future Stars." We also co-
organized the Hong Kong Occupational Safety & Health Award,
supported the Caring Company Award, Talent-Wise Employment
Charter, Family Friendly Employers Award Scheme, Future Stars
Programme, ORBIS -World Sight Day, and Community Chest.

The Chamber also served on the judging panels of a number

of awards, including HSBC Youth Business Award, Best SME
Partners Award, Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards, Metro
Finance Radio's, The Leaders' Choice Award, HKACE Customer
Service Excellence Awards, Hong Kong Green Awards, and Hong
Kong News Award, among others.

Chamber Services Limited

Chamber Services Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce. Leveraging
the extensive network and business knowledge of HKGCC,
the company provides a full range of professional event
management and public relations services to members and

corporate clients.

A key event for the company in 2013 was the HKGCC Free Ride
Day, which allowed members of the public to ride on trams and
the Star Ferry for free on May 29, the Chamber's birthday. The
campaign generated widespread publicity, and enhanced the

public's awareness of the Chamber as the voice of business.

Chamber Services Limited also organized a wide variety of
events for private clients in 2013, including a book launch for
John Swire & Sons, training courses in Hong Kong tailored
for Mainland businesses and organizations, as well as public
relations services for Nelion Limited.

Twenty-three members represented HKGCC
at the Four Chambers Football Tournament
on November 9.
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Chamber Services Limited organized a
wide variety of training programmes for
senior Mainland executives. These included
workshops as well as visits to well-known
companies in Hong Kong.
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Chamber Manpower General Resources' Management

During the year in review, the Chamber increased its headcount Several renovation projects were conducted in the Chamber's
by two to 107 to cope with the increase in services and events head office to improve the overall environment and efficiency
organized for members. We organized two very productive staff of the workplace. These include replacing old wallpaper
retreats during the year to brainstorm ideas on how we can and carpets, renovating the reception area, enhancing fire-
better serve members and improve operational efficiency. Staff safety, and replacing projectors in the conference room and
also attended a number of workshops to upgrade their skills, boardroom.

ranging from dealing with difficult people, to improving customer
service, to writing press releases. To encourage a healthy work-
life balance, Chamber staff organized various activities spread
out during the year, such as our annual staff outing, sports and

our annual year-end staff dinner.

Two long-serving staff retired from the Chamber in 2013. Senior
Director Dr'Y S Cheung retired after working at the Chamber for
23 years, while Secretary Betty Law started her retirement after

31 years of senvice.

To encourage a healthy work-life balance,
the Chamber organized a Sunday outing for staff
and their family to Ping Shan Cultural Farm.
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The Chamber's head office
underwent several renovation
projects in 2013, which included
brightening up the reception area.
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Staff are encouraged to play TR SRR -

a game or two of table tennis
at the Chamber theatre every
other Friday evening to have fun
and relieve stress.
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Two long-serving staff retired in
2013. Senior Director

DrY S Cheung, who worked for

the Chamber for 23 years, and

Secretary Betty Law, who served

the Chamber for 31 years.
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Certification

penny wise and
foolish!
ur CO ready for
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s of Origin  Certification of
D
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The Chamber's Certificate of Origin (CO) Division is the
largest CO issuing organization in Hong Kong, and also the
sole organization approved to issue ATA Camets. It also
provides certification of documents and paper-to-electronic
conversion services for Import/ Export Declarations and (Trade
Declaration) to the trading community. The division provides
quality and efficient services in seven locations, all near MTR

stations for users' convenience.

For 2013, demand for COs was weakened by conflicts

in the Middle East. The increasing popularity of online
submissions also further weakened demand for paper-to-
electronic conversion services. Fortunately, strong demand for
ATA Camnet and the extension of certification of documents
service offset the loss in CO business. As a result, although
the total number of applications processed fell by 7.3 9%, the
Certification Division was able to raise income by 13.8% over
2012's figure.

Certification Division _
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The CO Division launched its online
CO application platform in 2013,
which has proven to be very popular.
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Online Services

In 2013, the division rebuilt its website (www.webco.hk) to
promote certification services and modemize the user interfaces.
Online CO submission services were also enhanced to improve
efficiency. The service has proven to be very popular as around
83% of all CO applications in 2013 were processed online.

In the third quarter of 2013, the division started to develop online
senvices for Camet (General Goods), and is scheduled to be
launched in the second quarter of 2014. Carnet applicants will be
able to prepare and get pre-lodgement approval online, which will
reduce the time required to prepare Camets, and also eliminate

travelling time and expenses when revisions are required.
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The Chamber expanded its
Certification of Documents Service to
cover a wider range of trade documents.
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ATA Carnet Outlook

The Chamber is the sole approved body in Hong Kong for the With the globalization of production lines and growing trend
issue of ATA Carnets, and the largest issuing organization in Asia. to simplify trade documentation worldwide, demand for

Carnets are international customs documents which permit trade certificates of origin services is expected to gradually decline in
samples, exhibition goods and professional equipment to be the coming years. One bright spot will be the further opening
taken across frontiers without payment of duties and taxes. In of the Mainland, which we expect will raise demand for Carnet
2013, a total of 7527 Camet documents were issued, an increase  services. This, coupled with growth in demand for Certification of
of 10.3% over 2012. These covered mainly jewellery, arts and Documentation Services, should ensure the division maintains
crafts totalling goods value of HK$20 billion. moderate growth in 2014.

Certification of Documents

To improve document creditability and comply with international
certification practices, the Chamber introduced Certification of
Documents Service in 2012. Following its success, the service was
extended to cover a wide range of trade documents, with 52,574

trade documents being certified in 2013.

66 Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce Annual Report 2013
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In 2013, a total of 7527 Carnets were
issued, an increase of 10.3% over 2012.
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Nominal GDP (HKs Billion)

— Private Consumption

— Government Consumption

— Capital Investment

— Inventories

— Goods and Services Exports
— Goods Exports
— Services Exports

— Goods and Services Imports
— Goods Imports
— Services Imports

— Domestic Demand

Inflation and Wages
— Composite CPI

- CPIA

- CPIB

-CPIC

— GDP Deflator

Real GDP (Chained 2011 HKS$ Billion)

— Private Consumption

— Government Consumption

— Capital Investment

— Inventories

— Goods and Services Exports
— Goods Exports
— Services Exports

— Goods and Services Imports
— Goods Imports
— Services Import

— Domestic Demand

Real GDP (% Change)

— Private Consumption

— Government Consumption

— Capital Investment

— Inventories (% of GDP)

— Goods and Services Exports
— Goods Exports
— Services Exports

— Goods and Services Imports
— Goods Imports
— Services Imports

— Domestic Demand

Retail Sales (Hks billion)
Percent Change

Volume Index (2009/10 = 100)
Percent Change

Restaurant receipts (Hks Billion)
Percent Change
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2006
1,503.4
868.7
131.8
3372
-2.1
3,033.8
2,4674
566.4
2,866.0
2,576.3
289.6
1,335.6

2.1
1.7
2.1
2.2
(0.5)

1,630.3
960.3
1477
379.9
-1.8
3,598.7
2,953.7
645.0
3,438.1
3,099.6
338.5
1,486.2

7.0
6.1
0.9
7.
©.1)
9.4
9.3
10.0
9.1
9.2
8.4
6.1

219.6
13
78.5
5.6
61.6
9.5

Annual Report 2013

2007
1,650.8
982.4
139.0
340.4
12.8
3,363.0
2,698.8
664.1
3,186.7
2,852.5
3342
1,474.5

20
1.2
22
2.6
3.1

1,735.7
1,043.4
152.4
391.9
16.1
3,898.8
3,161.3
7375
3,752.4
3,373.0
379.4
1,603.8

6.5
8.6
3.2
32
0.9
8.3
70
14.3
9.1
8.8
12.1
79

2477
12.8
86.4
10.1
69.8
13.4

GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT

2008
1,707.5
1,026.5
148.0
350.8
8.5
3,564.8
2,844.0
720.8
3,391.1
3,024.1
367.0
1,533.8

43
3.6
4.6
4.7
1.3

1,772.7
1,062.6
155.5
397.3
9.5
3,997.2
32222
774.9
3,836.4
3,435.0
4014
1,625.0

2.1
1.8
2.0
1.4
0.5
25
1.9
5.1
2.2
1.8
5.8
1.3

273.8
10.5
90.8
5.1
79.2
13.4

2009
1,659.2
1,013.6

152.5

3396

229
3,172.9
2,500.1

672.8
3,042.3
2,703.0

339.3
1,528.6

0.6
0.5
0.6
0.6
(0.4)

1,729.1
1,064.5
159.1
383.5
275
3,595.6
2,8179
7777
3,491.4
3,109.9
381.5
1,634.7

(2.5)
02
23

(3.5)
16

(10.0)
(12.5)
0.4

(9.0)

(9.5)

(5.0)
06

274.8
0.4
902
0.7)
79.9
08

2010
1,776.3
1,090.2

1574

386.9
375
3,897.5
3,068.4
829.0
3,793.1
3,395.1
398.1
1,672.0

23
25
22
2.1
0.3

1,846.1
1,129.6
164.5
413.0
435
4,198.5
3,306.1
892.3
4,097.9
3,674.2
423.7
1,750.6

6.8
6.1
34
7.7
24
16.8
17.3
14.7
174
18.1
11.1
7.1

325.0
18.3
104.1
15.4
84.0
5.1

2011
1,934.4
12244

168.5

4553
11.7
4,361.3
3,420.1
9412
4,286.8
3,848.2
438.6
1,860.0

53
5.6
52
5.1
3.9

1,934.4
1,224.4
168.5
4553
11.7
4,361.3
3,420.1
941.2
4,286.8
3,848.2
438.6
1,860.0

4.8
8.4
2.5
10.2
0.6
3.9
3.4
55
4.6
4.7
3.5
6.2

405.7
24.8
123.3
18.4
89.3
6.4

2012
2,0372
1,315.0

185.5

5173

37
45948
3,591.8
1,003.0
457138
41164

4554
2,014.1

4.1
3.6
43
42
3.7

1,964.4
1,274.6
174.6
486.3
-3.0
4,443.9
3,482.2
961.8
4,412.0
3,965.0
447.1
1,932.5

1.5
4.1
36
68
(02)
1.9
1.8
22
2.9
30
1.9
39

445.5
9.8
132.2
72
93.8
5.0

2013
2,1225
1,402.0

198.6

502.3
2.7
4,882.4
3,816.4
1,066.0
4,664.1
4,394.9
465.2
2,100.2

44
54
4.0
3.6
1.2

2,022.2
1,327.6
179.3
502.2
-0.9
4,732.7
3,714.9
1,017.8
4,498.9
4,264.9
453.8
2,008.2

2.9
42
2.7
33
(00)
6.5
6.7
58
20
76
1.5
39

494.5
11.0
146.2
10.6
97.0
3.5



E

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Population (millions, year end) 6.857 6.916 6.958 6.973 7.024 7.072 7.155 7.184
- Male (%) 476 476 474 473 46.7 46.9 46.5 46.4
— Female (%) 524 52.9 53.0 53.2 53.3 53.6 53.5 53.6
— 0-14 years old (%) 14.1 13.2 12.7 12.4 12.1 11.7 11.4 11.0
— 15-24 years old (o) 13.2 13.1 12.9 12.6 12.6 12.2 12.3 11.7
— 25-39 years old (o) 24.2 23.8 23.7 23.8 235 234 232 23.1
— 40-64 years old (%) 38.0 37.8 38.4 38.8 38.9 394 39.6 39.9
— Qver 65 years old (%) 10.5 12.2 12.3 12.4 129 13.3 13.7 14.3
Labour Force (Million) 3.576 3.638 3.665 3.696 3.673 3.740 3.783 3.868
— Employed (villion) 3.403 3.489 3.540 3.504 3.513 3.612 3.658 3.737

— Wholesale, Export/Import Trade 0582 0586 0583 0559 0564 0562 0568 0555

— Retail 0.225 0.230 0.236 0.235 0.243 0.253 0.259 0.264

— Transportation, Warehousing 0.147  0.151 0.156  0.158  0.160 0.164 0.167  0.169

— Hotels, Food, Beverages 0.229 0.237 0.242 0.241 0.249 0.265 0.272 0.276

— Finance, Insurance, Real Estate 0.130 0.139 0.145 0.145 0.151 0.162 0.166 0.168

— Business, Professional Services 0.270 0.281 0287 0293 0.307 0.323 0.334 0.345
— Social, Personal Services 0376  0.388 0.402 0415 0429 0.439 0.450 0.461
Unemployment Rate (%) 10.5 10.7 11.0 11.2 1.7 11.7 11.9 33
Under-employment Rate (%) 24 22 1.9 2.3 2.0 1.7 1.7 1.5
Tourism Atrrivals (Million) 25.3 28.2 29.5 29.6 36.0 41.9 48.6 54.3
— From Mainland China (o) 53.8 55.0 57.1 60.7 61.7 67.0 71.8 75.0
— From Taiwan (%) 52 47 45 4.1 3.7 45 43 2.5
— From Japan (%) 8.6 79 76 6.8 6.0 4.8 43 55
— From the USA (%) 4.6 4.7 3.9 3.6 33 3.0 39 2.0

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Stock Exchange Indices (Year-end)

Hang Seng Index (1uly 1964=100) 19,965 27813 14387 21,872 23,035 18,434 27082 23,306
Average Daily Turnover (HK$ Million) 33,735 87427 71840 62,015 68,580 69,476 53,715 62,560
Market Capitalisation (US$ Billion) 1,705 2,633 1,317 2292 2,696 2,242 2,830 3,102
Number of Listed Companies 975 1,048 1,087 1,145 1,244 1,326 1,368 1,643
Money and Banking

No. of Licensed Banks (Operating) 138 142 145 145 146 152 155 156
No. of Restricted License Banks 31 29 27 26 21 20 21 21
No. of DTCs (Operating) 33 29 28 28 26 26 24 24
Money Supply M1 (HK$ Billion) 492 617 646 902 1,017 1,127 1,377 1,513
Money Supply M2 (HK$ Billion) 5,063 6,106 6,268 6,602 7,136 8,058 8,951 9,929
Money Supply M3 (HK$ Billion) 5,099 6,140 6,301 6,627 7,156 8,081 8,971 9,957
Total Bank Deposits (Hk$ Billion) 4,757 5,869 6,060 6,381 6,862 7,591 8,296 9,065
Total Loans and Advances (HK$ Billion) 2,468 2962 3,286 3,289 4,227 5,081 5,567 6,463
— Loans for use in Hong Kong (Percent Share) 81.8 789 75.8 770 729 68.5 64.8 62.6
— All other loans (Percent Share) 18.2 21.1 242 23.0 27.1 315 35.2 374
Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate (Average) 79 76 54 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Exchange Rate

HK$:US$1 (Average) 777 7.80 779 775 177 7.78 776 7.76
HKS$: €1 (Average) 9.77 10.7 11.45 10.82 10.31 10.84 9.97 10.30
HK$: ¥100 (Average) 14.95 15.06 13.23 12.05 11.26 9.77 9.73 795
HK$: Rmb1 (Average) 1.03 1.03 0.97 0.88 0.87 0.83 0.81 0.79
Trade Weighted Index (Jan 2010=100) 111.1 106.3 100.7 101.9 99.5 94.6 96.4 98.39
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FINANCE (Continued) _

Public Finances (Hks$ Billion, FY April - March)

Operating Revenue Operating Expenditure Operating Balance Fiscal Reserves (FY-end)
2004-05 188.0 196.9 (8.9) 296.0
2005-06 204.5 1925 12.1 310.6
2006-07 234.4 194.0 40.4 369.3
2007-08 276.3 204.7 71.6 4929
2008-09 281.5 258.0 235 520.3
2009-10 262.9 234.4 28.5 591.6
2010-11 299.8 239.3 60.5 595.5
2011-12 339.4 2978 41.6 734.0
2012-13 344.6 304.8 39.8 745.9
2013-14 3479 338.8 9.1 755.1
2014-15 (Budget) 348.9 325.0 239 726.8
Merchandise Trade (HKs Billon) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Total Imports (cif) 2,600 2,872 3,028 2,692 3,365 3,765 3912 4,065
Total Exports (fob.) 2,461 2,689 2,827 2,469 3,031 3,337 3,434 3,562
— Domestic Exports 135 109 91 58 70 66 59 54
— Re-exports 2,326 2,580 2,736 2411 2,962 3,272 3,376 3,508
Total Trade 5,061 5,562 5,855 5,161 6,396 7,102 7347 7627
Trade Balance (139)  (183)  (202)  (223)  (334)  (427) (478)  (503)
— As a percent of imports (5.3) (6.9 6.7) (8.3) 9.9 (11.4) (122) (124
Services Trade
Exports of Services 645 738 775 778 892 941 962 1,018
Imports of Services 339 379 401 382 424 439 447 454
Two-way Services Trade 984 1,117 1,176 1,159 1,316 1,380 1,409 1,472
Services Balance 306 358 374 396 469 503 515 564
Merchandise Exports: Major Markets (% Share)
The Mainland of China 47.0 48.7 48.5 512 52.7 524 54.1 54.1
USA 15.1 13.7 12.7 11.6 11.0 9.9 9.9 9.9
Japan 4.9 45 43 44 42 4.0 42 42
India 0.9 1.3 1.8 2.1 25 2.8 22 22
Germany 3.1 3.0 3.3 32 2.7 2.7 2.3 2.3
Taiwan 2.1 2.0 1.9 2.2 2.3 2.6 24 2.4
Merchandise Imports: Major Suppliers (% Share)
The Mainland of China 459 46.3 46.6 46.4 455 45.1 471 471
Japan 10.3 10.0 9.8 8.8 9.2 8.5 8.0 8.0
Singapore 6.3 6.8 6.4 6.5 7.1 6.8 6.3 6.3
Taiwan 75 7.1 6.4 6.5 6.7 6.4 6.3 6.3
USA 4.8 4.8 5.0 53 53 5.6 52 52
Korea 4.6 4.2 39 3.8 4.0 4.0 3.9 39

Imports by End-use (HK$ Willion)

Foodstuffs 65.5 772 96.9 106.0 123.8 145.2 150.7 169.7
Consumer Goods 697.3 762.2 810.7 690.0 811.4 938.1 944.4 934.0
Fuels 74.0 88.1 111.7 89.9 119.0 146.0 141.9 137.2
Raw Materials & Manufactures 993.1 1,098.7 11,0929 981.8 1,237.9 1,297.7 1,284.4 1,360.0
Capital Goods 769.9 841.8 913.1 824.7 1,072.7 1,237.6 1,390.8 1,459.8
Re-exports by End Use (Hks Billon)

Foodstuffs 14.1 19.1 26.7 29.7 339 39.2 39.5 429
Consumer goods 752.9 815.2 865.4 732.3 817.8 883.8 866.7 841.1
Raw Materials and Semi-manufactures ~ 835.9 915.1 925.0 839.7 11,0353 1,1156 11,1104 11,1682
Fuels 42 4.4 5.7 3.3 3.0 4.6 6.7 5.8
Capital Goods 719.4 824.7 910.5 8063 1,071.5 12284 13522 14473
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Services Exports (HK$ Billon)

Total 566.4 664.1 7208 6728 829.0 9412 1,003.0 1,066.0
Transportation 174.2 200.5 225.6 183.6 232.0 250.1 248.5 2451
Travel 90.4 107.3 119.2 1272 172.5 221.5 256.5 302.0
Trade-related 178.3 199.0 2159  206.8 2439 270.7 281.2 288.6
Other 123.6 157.3 160.2 155.2 180.7 198.9 216.8 230.3
Services Imports (HK$ Billon)

Total 289.6 3342 3670 3393 398.1 438.6 455.4 465.2
Transportation 90.2 114.1 128.9 101.0 122.0 139.4 142.6 142.0
Travel 109.1 1173 125.3 120.5 134.8 148.1 155.7 163.0
Trade-related 21.0 243 26.9 270 32.8 33.2 33.7 33.7
Other 69.3 78.5 85.9 90.8 108.4 117.9 123.4 126.4

OTHER INDICATORS r |

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Electricity Consumption (Terajoules) 161,504 161,598 160,134 162,799 160,098 162,077 162,077 161,568
— Industrial 14,015 13,104 12,182 11,143 11,080 11,104 11,282 11,212
— Commercial 95,370 97155 97672 98,856 99,883 100,067 102,050 102,820
— Domestic 35428 36,422 37100 38,972 39344 39872 41,189 41,115
— Other (Indl. Export) 16,691 14917 13,180 13,828 9,791 11,034 7,556 6,421
Telecommunications (‘000 Accounts)

— Residential 2,135 1,976 2,274 2,360 2,407 2,412 2,404 2,480
— Business 1,701 1,743 1,834 1,828 1,853 1,840 1,843 1,845
— Broadband Internet Accounts (000) 1,744 1,880 1,921 2,033 2,127 2,245 2,265 2,233
— Mobile Phone Subscribers (000) 9,444 10589 11,374 12,207 13,416 14,931 16,393 172250
Motor Vehicle Registrations (No.)

Total Licensed 552,980 565,071 575,106 584,070 663,726 690,089 718,109 750,076
— New Registrations 32910 38313 40,473 29,493 39,729 43,838 45,121 50,523
Private Cars 393,756 406,995 421,062 429,754 449,400 471,685 494,646 517997
— New Registrations 27488 33,124 30,853 23,783 31,828 34,767 35685 38,119
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Independent auditor's report to the members of

The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce (the “Chamber”) set out on pages 76 to 94, which comprise the
consolidated and the Chamber balance sheets as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated
income and expenditure statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

General Committee’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
The General Committee of the Chamber is responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the General Committee determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the General Committee, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Chamber and of the group as at 31 December 2013 and of the
group's surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

cbnac

Signed KPMG
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong
27 March, 2014
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Consolidated income and expenditure statement
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Income o
Members' subscriptions

Fees

Interest and dividends

Publications and promotion

Commission income

Rental income from operating leases

Net realised gains on available-for-sale debt
and equity securities

Reversal of impairment loss for debtor

Exchange gain

Expenditure
Staff

Office

Services

Depreciation of fixed assets
Subscriptions and donations
Exchange loss

Surplus before taxation
Income tax

Surplus for the year

The notes on pages 80 to 94 form part of these financial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Note
i

12
13
14

4(@)
19

20

21

2013
$'000

11,640
49,909
5,094
2,091
188
4,946
3,946

1
11827

N

(47046)
(5316)
(2,785)
(4221)
(2,709)

(62,077)
15,750

282

for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Items that have been reclassified or may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Available-for-sale securities:

— Changes in fair value recognised during the year

— Reclassification adjustments for amounts
transferred to income and expenditure

Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 80 to 94 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated balance sheet

as at 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Non-current assets
Fixed assets

— Investment properties
— Other fixed assets

Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Current assets
Accounts with investment manager

Debtors and prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Creditors and accruals
Subscriptions received in advance
Current tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities
NET ASSETS

General fund

Fair value reserve

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorised for issue by the General Committee on 27 March, 2014.

CK Chow
Y K Pang
Shirley Yuen

Shirley Loo

Chairman

Deputy Chairman

Treasurer

The notes on pages 80 to 94 form part of these financial statements.

Note 2013 2012

W & $'000 $'000
4(a)
53,841 44,645
47979 59,545
101,820 104,190
6 299,888 272,526
11(b) 64

7 8,178 6,831
8 3,111 3,487
9 93,096 85,557
104,385 95,875
506.157 _472.591
10 45,566 50,898
13,883 13,860
11(a) 12 212
9,461 64970
11(b) - _..233
446,696 407388
356,222 340,754
90,474 66,634
446,696 407388
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Balance sheet

as at 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Non-current assets
Fixed assets

— Investment properties
— Other fixed assets

Interest in a subsidiary
Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Current assets
Accounts with investment manager

Debtors and prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Creditors and accruals
Subscriptions received in advance
Current tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities
NET ASSETS

General fund

Fair value reserve

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorised for issue by the General Committee on 27 March, 2014.

CK Chow
Y K Pang
Shirley Yuen

Shirley Loo

Note
B &

4(b)

11(b)

[ee]

11(a)

11(b)

22(a)

22(a)

Chairman

Deputy Chairman

Treasurer

The notes on pages 80 to 94 form part of these financial statements.
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2013 2012
$'000 $'000
53,841 44,645
47979 59,538
101,820 104,183
2,269 6,490
299,888 272,526
64 -
8,178 6,831
3,078 2,982
92,676 81,503
103,932 91,316
507973 474515
45,536 50,787
13,883 13,860
12 212
59,431 64,859

- 233
448,542 409,423
358,068 342,789
90,474 66,634
448,542 409,423
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

General  Fair value Total

fund reserve equity

$'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at 1 January 2012 327,169 32,601 359,770
Changes in equity for 2012:

Surplus for the year 13,585 13,585

Other comprehensive income - 34033 _ 34033

Total comprehensive income for the year 13585 _ 34033 _ 47618

Balance at 31 December 2012 340,754 66,634 407388

and 1 January 2013

Changes in equity for 2013:

Surplus for the year 15,468 15,468

Other comprehensive income - _ 23840 _ 23840

Total comprehensive income for the year 15468 _ 23,840 _ 39,308

Balance at 31 December 2013 356222 _ 90474 446,696

The notes on pages 80 to 94 form part of these financial statements.

Consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note
M &

Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 9(b)

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
Corporate Income Tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Investing activities
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets
Payment for the purchase of securities
(Increase)/decrease in accounts with investment manager
Interest and dividends received
Proceeds from sale of securities

Net cash generated from investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 9(a)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 9(a)

The notes on pages 80 to 94 form part of these financial statements.

2013
$000

5998
(779)

(1,851)
(22,876)
(1,347)
5,094
23,300

(1,451)
(39,043)
2,283
4,665
35,5598
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Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

@)

(b)

©

©)

Principal place of business

The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce is a company limited by guarantee and
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place
of business at 22/F United Centre, 95 Queensway, Central, Hong Kong.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the group and the Chamber. Note
2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the group and the
Chamber for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 comprise
the Chamber and its subsidiary (together referred to as the “group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
securities are stated at fair value as explained in note 2(e).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by the General Committee in the application of HKFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the group and the Chamber. None of
these changes in accounting policies have a material impact on the Chamber's financial
statements.

The group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period (see note 25).

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The group controls and entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those retumns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the group has power, only substantive rights (held by the group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
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resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Chamber's balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less any
impairment losses (see note 2(j)).

Investments in debt and equity securities

The group’s and the Chamber's policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other
than an investment in a subsidiary are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs from
the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market
for an identical asset or liability or based on a variation technique that uses only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs. These investments are
subsequently accounted for and classified as available-for-sale debt and equity securities. At
each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve.

Dividend income and interest income from these investments calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in income and expenditure statement in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2(p)(iii) and 2(p)(iv) respectively. When these investments are
derecognised or impaired (see note 2(j)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to the income and expenditure statement.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the group commits to purchase/sell
the investments.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 2(h)) to eamn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)). Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 2(p)(v).

When the group holds a property interest under an operating lease to eam rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 2(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied
to other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(h).

Fixed assets

The following items of fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 2(i)):

— Building held for own use which are situated on leasehold land classified as held under
operating leases (see note 2(h)); and

— Other items of fixed assets.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed assets are

determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount

of the item and are recognised in the income and expenditure statement on the date of

retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed assets, less their estimated

residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is deprecated over the unexpired
term of lease.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 40 years after the date
of completion.

— Furniture, fittings and office equipment 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years
— Computer systems 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the armangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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(i) Classification of assets leased to the group

Assets that are held by the group under leases which transfer to the group substantially

all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

group are classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— Property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property is classified as investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 2(f)); and

—Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease. For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income and expenditure statement in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where
an altemative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income and
expenditure statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.

Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are dlassified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

—a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as

follows:

— For investment in a subsidiary, the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 2(i)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2(i)(ii).

— For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of retumn for a
similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

— For current receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost, the

impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the income and
expenditure statement. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset's carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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— For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that had been recognised in
the fair value reserve is reclassified to the income and expenditure statement. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in the income and expenditure
statement is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in the income and expenditure statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the income and expenditure statement in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through the income and
expenditure statement. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the income and expenditure statement.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect of current receivables included within
debtors and prepayments, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubitful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irecoverable is written off against current receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in the income and
expenditure statemnent.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date

to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss

previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

— investment properties; and

— other fixed assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in the income and expenditure statement if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the income and expenditure
statement in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 2(i)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
senvices are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in
the income and expenditure statement.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses. Apart from differences which arise on initial recognition of assets and
liabilities, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and

is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the group or
the Chamber has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income
and expenditure statement as follows:
(i) Members' subscriptions
Members' subscriptions are recognised on an accrual basis.
(ii) Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income are recognised as income when the services are
rendered.
(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.
(iv) Dividends
— Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder's
right to receive payment is established.
— Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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(v) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the income and
expenditure statement in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in the income and expenditure statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income and expenditure statement.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the group if that
person:
(i) has control or joint control over the group;
(i) has significant influence over the group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the group or the group’s
parent.
(b) An entity is related to the group if any of the following conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the group are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of @ member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity.
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the group or an entity related to the group.
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Accounting estimates and judgements

Impairment of assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of assets may not be recoverable, the
assets may be considered “impaired” and are tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36, Impairment of assets. An impairment loss is recognised when the asset's recoverable
amount has declined below its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the greater

of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The asset's recoverable amount will

also be estimated if circumstances indicate that an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been

a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. In
determining the recoverable amount, significant judgements are required and the group uses
all readily available information, including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions, projections of operating income and expenses or other market data, to arive at
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount. Any adverse changes
in the assumptions used in determining the recoverable amount would cause the carrying
amount of the asset to be significantly different from the recoverable amount.
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4 Fixed assets

(@) Consolidated AREE RAHER AE e NG BEME  EeEE
nE BLERE 5 3t
Leasehold ~ Fumiture,
properties fittings Total
held for  and office Motor ~ Computer Investment fixed
ownuse equipment  vehicles  systems  Subotal properties assets
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Cost:
At 1 January 2012 84,931 19,035 699 17962 122,627 65083 187710
Additions 1,017 434 1451 1451
At 31 December 2012 84,931 _20,052 699 _ 18396 124,078 65,083 189,161
At 1 January 2013 84931 20,052 699 18,396 124,078 65,083 189,161
Transfer (17,283) - - (17283) 17283 -
Additions = 1,177 674 1,851 1,851
Disposals = - (12,213) (12,213) - (12,213)
At31 December2013 67648 21229 __699 6857 96433 82366 178799
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2012 27077 17174 23 17543 61,817 19,021 80,838
Charge for the year 1,818 419 140 339 _ 2716 _ 1417 _ 4,133
At 31 December 2012 28,895 17593 163 17882 _64,533 20438 _84.971
At 1 January 2013 28895 17593 163 17882 64,533 20438 84,971
Transfer (6,321) - - (6,321) 6321 =
Charge for the year 1470 483 140 362 2455 1766 4221
Written back on disposals - - (12213) (12213) - (12213)
At 31 December 2013 24,044 18,076 303 6031 _48454 28525 76979
Net book value:
At 31 December 2013 43604 _ 3,153 396 826 _ 47979 53841 101,820
At 31 December 2012 56,036 _ 2,459 536 514 59545 44,645 104,190
(b) The Chamber
Cost:
At 1 January 2012 84931 18,652 699 17893 122,175 65,083 187258
Additions - 1,017 434 1451 - _1451
At 31 December 2012 _84931 _ 19,669 699 18,327 123,626 _65083 188,709
At 1 January 2013 84,931 19,669 699 18,327 123,626 65,083 188,709
Transfer (17283) - - (17283) 17283 =
Additions - 1,177 674 1,851 - 1,851
Disposals - (12,213) (12,213) - (12,213)
At31 December 2013 _67648 20846 ____f 699 _ 6788 95981 _82366 178347
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2012 27077 16798 23 17486 61,384 19,021 80,405
Charge for the year 1,818 415 140 331 _2704 _ 1417 _ 4121
At 31 December 2012 28895 17213 163 17817 _64088 20438 _84526
At 1 January 2013 28,895 17213 163 17817 64,088 20,438 84,526
Transfer (6,321) - - (6,321) 6321 -
Charge for the year 1,470 480 140 358 2448 1766 4214
Written back on disposals - - - (12,213) (12,213) - (12,213)
At 31 December 2013 24,044 17693 303 5962 48,002 _28525 _76,527
Net book value:
At 31 December 2013 43604 _ 3153 396 826 _ 47979 53841 101,820
At 31 December 2012 56,036 _ 2,456 536 510 59538 44,645 104,183
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The fair value of these investment properties was $136,000,000 as at 31 December
2013 (2012: $123,000,000) which was estimated by the General Committee by making
reference to recent transactions of similar properties.

At 31 December 2013, all the properties are held under medium-term leases in Hong
Kong.

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The group leases out investment properties under operating leases. The leases typically run
for an initial period of two to three years, with an option to renew the lease after that date
at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition of
investment property are classified as investment property.

The group's total future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows: HERBEE
Consolidated and the Chamber
2013 2012
$'000 $'000
Within 1 year 5,234 2,889
After 1 year but within 5 years 2,549 631
7783 3,520

Interest in a subsidiary
#Ee
The Chamber
2013 2012
$'000 $'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 10 10
Amount due from a subsidiary 6,241 10,462
6,251 10,472
Less: impairment loss (3.982) (3.982)

2,269 6.490

The wholly-owned subsidiary, Chamber Services Limited (“CSL"), is incorporated in
Hong Kong. The principal activity of CSL was the provision of business related services.
The Chamber has issued a letter of support which was in force during the year for an
unspecified amount to provide financial assistance as is necessary to maintain CSL as a
going concern.

Non-current financial assets GARBEE
Consolidated and the Chamber

2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Available-for-sale debt and equity securities:

Hong Kong listed shares in Tradelink Electronic 49,644 39,069
Commerce Limited

Unit trusts managed by investment manager

— Listed outside Hong Kong - 5,023
— Unlisted 250,244 228,434

Market value of listed investments

Accounts with investment manager

These comprise cash balances in interest-bearing current accounts and fixed deposits
together with accrued interest, managed by the investment manager.

Debtors and prepayments

The amount of the group's and the Chamber's debtors and prepayments expected to
be recovered or recognised as expense after more than one year is $159,000 (2012:
$181,000). Al of the other debtors and prepayments are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

On 12 March 2013, the group received $409,000 from a debtor which was fully
impaired in previous years. As a result, an impairment loss of $409,000 was reversed
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Except the above, all the group's and the Chamber's debtors were neither past due nor
impaired as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

EBAEE FH=-0—=
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: && wEg
Consolidated The Chamber
2013 2012 2013 2012
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bank deposits 45566 72 45,566 72
Cash at bank and in hand 47,530 85,485 47,110 81,431
Cash and cash equivalents 93,096 85,557 92,676 81,503
Reconciliation of surplus before taxation to cash generated from operations:
Note 2013 2012
B T $000 $000
Surplus before taxation 15,750 14,185
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 4(a) 4221 4,133
Net realised gains on debt and equity securities 15 (3,946) (2,778)
Interest and dividend income 13 (5,094) (4,665)
Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in debtors and prepayments 376 (1,494)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors and accruals (5,332) 3,562
Increase in subscriptions received in advance 23 864
Cash generated from operations 5998 13,807

Creditors and accruals

All of the group’s and the Chamber's creditors and accruals are repayable within one year
as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Income tax in the balance sheet

Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:

HE BEE

Consolidated The Chamber
2013 2012 2013 2012
$000 $000 $000 $000

Provision for Hong Kong

Profits Tax for the year 589 578 589 578
Provisional Profits Tax paid (577) (366) (577) (366)
12 212 12 212

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the balance sheet and the movements during the
year are as follows:

BaREBE
Consolidated and The Chamber
2013 2012
$000 $000
At 1 January (233) (202)
Credited/(charged) to the income and expenditure statement 297 (31
At 31 December 64 233

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(n), the group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of a subsidiary of
$4,401,000 (2012: $4,596,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available. The tax losses do not expire under
current tax legislation.

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce Annual Report 2013
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Fees
Certificate fees

EDI fees, including trade declaration and
textile quota licence fees

Reimbursement to Hong Kong Government

Reimbursement to Global E-Trading Ltd.

Others

Interest and dividends

Interest on time deposits
Interest and dividends from listed securities

Publications and promotion

Income from

— publications

— sundry services
- seminars

Expenditure on

— publications

— trade and programme promotion
— advertising and public relations
— seminars

Net income

Net realised gains on available-for-sale debt and equity securities

Realised gains on disposal of investments managed
by investment managers

Available-for-sale debt and equity securities
reclassified from equity on disposal

Staff

Salaries, bonus and allowances

Contribution to defined contribution retirement plan
Medical expenses

Passage and leave allowances

Training and recruiting

Sundries

Office

Rent and rates

Light and power

Telephone

Printing and stationery

Postage

Maintenance, repairs and cleaning
Books and newspapers

Local travelling

Motor car expenses

Sundry expenses

2013
$'000
4,204

(258)

3946

2013
$'000
41,982
4,567
55

(19)

149

312
47046

2013
$'000
1,584
308
84
1,130
342
1,408

62
166
211

5316

B8

2012
$000

24761

2012
$'000
1,472
307
106
913
340
1,353

65
137

229
4954
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18 FRIEE 18  Services
2013 2012
$'000 $'000
2tk Auditors' remuneration 277 318
BHRSE Payroll service fees 234 240
ERREER Legal and professional fees 202 379
BRI Computing fees 169 165
REEBYE Investment manager's fees 796 738
R & Insurance 1,107 529

2,785 2,369

19 BEREX 19 Subscriptions and donations
2013 2012
$'000 $000

BoORBEE Trade organisations’ subscriptions 311 293
B Donations 2398 =
—2.709 295

20 HAWXBEERAFEH 20 Income tax in the consolidated income and expenditure statement

(@) GANXEHERNBIEESE: (@) Taxation in the consolidated income and expenditure statement represents:

2013 2012
$000 $000

SHIRIE — BAFIER Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
KEEEE Provision for the year 589 578
B S R Over-provision in respect of prior years (10) 9)
579 569

EELRE Deferred tax
REEENARRED Origination and reversal of temporary differences (297) 31
282 600
AEBIZBARF E A ERBUEFA16.5% 5 & The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2013 is calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%)
(20124 : 16.5%) FtE2013FEBFISGHAHE of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

(b) BREEBABEAHHAXIHRE B (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting surplus at applicable tax rates:
2013 2012
$'000 $000

AR Surplus before taxation 15,750 14,185
RREBNEHBE165% (20126 : 16.5%) Notional tax on surplus before taxation, calculated at

HENTEIRBEER Hong Kong Profits Tax of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) 2,599 2,340
TR BRAOHBTE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 9,606 8975
IEEBRANBIE TS Tax effect of non-taxable income (11,881) (10,634)
FRENAERNBABBROH TS Tax effect on utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (32) (72)
BEFERERE Over-provision in prior years (10) 9)
EWCABR A BB BIR Actual tax expense charged to income and expenditure 282 600

21 FERH 21 Surplus for the year

AEEARBECREHEMBEREARMN The surplus for the year includes a surplus of $15,279,000 (2012: $13,158,000) which
—%15,279,0007T &8 (20124 : 13,158,000 has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Chamber.
)

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce Annual Report 2013
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General fund and fair value reserve

Movements in the components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the
group’s consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Chamber's individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

wEme LaEe  DAEERE R
The Chamber General  Fair value Total
fund reserve equity

$'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at 1 January 2012 329,631 32,601 362,232
Surplus for the year 13,158 - 13,158
Other comprehensive income - 34033 _ 34,033
Balance at 31 December 2012 and 342789 66,634 409,423

1 January 2013
15,279

Surplus for the year 15,279

Other comprehensive income 23,840 _ 23,840

Balance at 31 December 2013 358068 _ 90474 448542

Capital management

The group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group's ability
to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide benefits for members, by
providing services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at
a reasonable cost.

The group defines “capital” as including all components of equity.

The group's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed by the General Committee.
Adjustments are made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions
affecting the Chamber or the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the General
Committee's fiduciary duties towards the Chamber.

The group's capital structure is monitored on the basis of a debt-to-capital ratio.

There was no change in the group’s approach to capital management compared with
previous years.

The debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

2013 2012
Total debt: $'000 $000
— Total current liabilities 59,461 64,970
Total equity 446,696 407,388

Debt-to-capital ratio 13% 16%

The group was not subject to externally imposed capital requirements in either the current or
prior year.

Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit and liquidity arises in the normal course of the group's business. The
group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its available-for-sale debt and equity
securities.

The group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the group to manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk

The group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any impairment allowance. The group
does not have significant concentration of credit risk.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted on a recognised stock exchange
and with counterparties that have high credit ratings. Given their credit ratings, the General
Committee does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
Further disclosures in respect of the group and the Chamber's exposure to credit risk arising
from debtors are set out in note 8.
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(b) Liquidity risk

©

The group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date
of the group’s and the Chamber's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the group and the Chamber can be required
to pay:

Consolidated 2013 2012
RE —FR —FRN
REREEDN RERERD
AHREE  M2A31R  ANRRE  M2A318
Reness REE Rengss BREfE
Total Total
contractual contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow

within Carrying within Camying

1 year or amount at Tyearor  amount at

ondemand 31 December ondemand 31 December

$000 $000 $000 $000

Creditors and accruals 45,566 45,566 50,898 50,898
Subscriptions received in advance 13,883 13,883 13,860 13,860
59,449 59,449 64,758 64,758

The Chamber 2013 2012
BEg —FRZK —F Rk
REKEEN REKEED
BHARMR  RN12A3B  AHKREER W12A318
Reness REE Benens FRMEE
Total Total
contractual contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow

within Camrying within Carrying

Tyearor  amount at Tyearor  amount at

ondemand 31 December on demand 31 December

$'000 $000 $'000 $'000

Creditors and accruals 45536 45,536 50,787 50,787
Subscriptions received in advance 13,883 13,883 13,860 13,860
59419 59419 64,647 64,647

Equity price risk

The group is exposed to equity price changes arising from available-for-sale equity
securities and investments managed by investment manager (see note 6).

Unit trusts are composed of equity securities listed in both developed and emerging
markets all over the world. In this respect, the General Committee considers the equity
price risk is minimised as the investment portfolio is diversified in terms of geographical
and industry distribution.

All of the group's unquoted investments are held for long term strategic purposes. Their
performance is assessed regularly, against performance of similar listed entities, based
on the limited information available to the group, together with an assessment of their
relevance to the group’s long term strategic plans.

As the investment portfolio is composed of equity securities listed in various markets
in the world, it is not meaningful to estimate the impact of the change in a single stock
market index to the Chamber, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce Annual Report 2013
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(d) Fair value measurement
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

©

24

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of financial instruments measured at the
balance sheet date on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as define in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:
— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement

date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair values measured using significant unobservable inputs.

2013

Assets
Listed available-for-sale equity securities
Investments managed by investment manager

2012

Assets
Listed available-for-sale equity securities
Investments managed by investment manager

AEERAERS
The group and the Chamber
FRER FZBR
Level 1 Level 2
$000 $000
49,644 =
= 250,24
49,644 250,244
AEEREHE
The group and the Chamber
E—ER EZER
Level 1 Level 2
$'000 $000
39,069 =
- 233457
39,069 233457

The fair value of investments managed by investment manager are based on quoted
market prices for identical financial instruments at the balance sheet date.

(ii) Fair values of financial assets or liabilities carried at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of financial assets or liabilities carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Estimation of fair values

Fair value of listed equity securities and listed managed funds is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date without any deduction for transaction costs.
Fair value of unlisted managed funds is based on unit price quoted by financial institutions.

Commitments

At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of properties are payable as follows:

wEe
Consolidated The Chamber
2013 2012 2013 2012
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Within 1 year 840 791 840 791
After 1 year but within 5 years 207 297 207 297
1,047 1,088 1,047 1,088

The Chamber is a lessee in respect of a number of properties held under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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25 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not

yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number
of amendments and five new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2013 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015

The group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the group's or the
Chamber's results of operations and financial position.
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